KEDRON WAVELL SERVICES HOCKEY CLUB INC



2011 ANNUAL REPORT

TABLE OF CONTENTS

Committee Members	
Life Members	
20 Year Medal Recipients	5
President's Report	
Treasurer's Report	
Men's Report	
Ladies' Report	
Junior Boys Report	
Junior Girls Report	17
Trophy Winners	18
Representative Players	
Team Results	

Committee Members

Patron: Jenny Tidey

President: John Davis
Past President: Ian Harcla

Treasurer: Kathy Mehonoshen

Assistant Treasurer:

Secretary: Jim Moloney/Fiona McQueen

Assistant Secretary: Ann King

Volunteer Manager: Karyn Argent

MENS

Vice President:Ben SmithTreasurer:Daniel Moloney

Secretary:

Development: Glen James

LADIES

Vice President: Christine Blanchard

Turf Treasurer:

Grass Treasurer: Fiona McQueen

BOYS

Vice President: Craig Fossey

Treasurer: Secretary:

GIRLS

Vice President:Belinda UrquhartTreasurer:Wendy KeeganSecretary:Christine Carr

CLUB CAPTAINS

Mens: Tom King Ladies: Fiona McQueen

Life Members

1982: Mavis Jones 1983: Jim Woods 1984: Greg Shirvington 1985: Keith Tidey 1986: Nancy McDonald 1989: Mel Taylor

1989: Mel Taylor **1990:** Jenny Tidey

1993: Eric Jones, Brenda Williams 1994: John Kerr, Joan Woods

1995: Judy Keen 1997: Duncan Davis 1999: Elaine Badini 2000: Helen Hill 2001: Ian Harcla 2003: Bill Hill

2004: Brian Williams 2005: Robyn Leece

2006: Diana Young, Rhonda Bentley

2007: Jan Hamilton 2008: Glen James

2009: Alyson Aleksic, Alan Kerr

2010: Jim Hamilton 2011: Karen Davis

20 Year Medal Recipients

2006

Alyson Aleksic Andre Antony Ajit Bhullar Greg Buzza **Shane Carroll Arthur Davis** Karen Davis Jan Hamilton Glen James Ian Jones Alan Kerr **Lorraine Morris** Ian Murray Michelle O'Brien Bruno Rossaro Piero Rossaro Doug Ward Diana Young

2007

Lee-Ann Perry Caeleigh Hancock Peter Beaton

2008

Alan Gough

2009

Robert McDonald Wendy LaChuisa Jim Hamilton Danielle Phillips

2010

Cheryl Bell

<u>2011</u>

Amanda Gray Rosanna Pappalardo

President's Report

2011 was another good year for Kedron Wavell Services Hockey Club. Our Club continued its strength in terms of numbers of teams playing under the Kedron Wavell Services Hockey Club banner, with now 37 teams representing the club across all age groups; and collected some well-earned premierships at season's end. The section reports provide the detail of the teams playing this year and their performances. Australian, Queensland and Brisbane representative honours were collected by Kedron Wavell players across the whole club; and at the very top level Marnie Hudson, Jodie Schulz and Kandice Olivieri all played in the Hockeyroos this year with Marnie and Jodie recently re-selected; Alyssa Kerr took out Best & Fairest awards in both the Brisbane Division 1 competition and the Australian U21 titles as well as playing in the Australian U21 Jillaroos team; and Jasmine Larosa was selected as Captain of the Australian Schoolgirls team. This is an outstanding contribution from one club.

It was especially heartening this year to see the widespread adoption of our new supporter's and player off-field wear; following adoption of the 'Wolves' name and new logo. The debate over the new name took a while, but in the end the Wolves was supported across all parts of the club; and has been warmly and widely adopted.



As with almost every sporting organisation, we survive, succeed and prosper on four pillars: our players, our organisational personnel, our sponsors and our supporters – meaning family, friends and club stalwarts. So, to all of those within our wider club

family who gave up your time to make us succeed, whether it was a small effort, or half your life, I thank you – on my own and on behalf of all the players of every age that got to enjoy their hockey for another year.

I also want to acknowledge the organisers and thank the contributors who made a success of our flood fundraiser early in 2011. We were able to raise over \$5,500; which we sent to Warwick Hockey Association whose main wet surface field was completely ruined. To any family who was affected by the Brisbane floods, I hope that you have full recovered by now; and hopefully we all get through this summer without flood or storm damage.

Our Principal Club Sponsor



2011 was the third year of our sponsorship arrangements with the Services Club, and the final year under the current agreement; and I want to particularly acknowledge the enormous support that is provided to our Hockey Club by Kedron Wavell Services Club.

We are particularly pleased when that support is demonstrated through the success of our 'home-grown' juniors, such as we have seen this year; and we hope the Services Club understands how critical its financial support is in achieving these outcomes and

how very much all of the Hockey Club appreciates their continued support.

This year, at Senior Presentation night, we added a small acknowledgement of the hockey club's appreciation to the Services Club's by presenting Lyndon Broome, the General Manager of the Services Club, with one of our club jackets – complete with the Wolves logo – and welcoming him to the "wolf pack".

Burringbar Park

Kedron Wavell continued to work with BHA and BWHA to ensure a quality facility for our sport is maintained at Burringbar Park and to ensure it remains the 'Home of Kedron Wavell Hockey'.

BHMG took a decision last year to replace the surface early in 2011, at a cost of approximately \$300,000. It was hopeful of gaining grants from both the State Government and Brisbane City Council to finance the replacement but failed in its initial applications.

Late last year, as the newly installed President, I went with Ian Harcla – as a representative of both our Club and BHMG – to a Community Cabinet meeting and lobbied Sports Minister Phil Reeves for the funding; and as everyone has seen this year we were immediately successful in obtaining a 'special grant' which enabled the new surface to be laid. Ian and I were pleased that the Minister acknowledged the particular efforts of your Kedron Wavell representatives in securing that funding when he officially opened the new turf in February.

Your club continues to operate the canteen, including the liquor licence, under the profit share arrangement so that the canteen meets its costs, makes a contribution towards the running of Burringbar Park through BHMG and, most importantly, our Club receives a reasonable return for the considerable effort our members put into running the canteen.

The recent announcement of the Commonwealth Games for the Gold Coast in 2018, including the installation of three new wet surfaces at Keith Hunt Park in Labrador, means that funding for the sport of hockey over the next 5 years will be largely focused there; after our surface, the flood-damaged Warwick field replacement, and the Redcliffe amenities block were all funded in the last year.

Nonetheless, the demand for turf time in Brisbane remains high and at some future stage I believe that Burringbar Park is the best location for the next wet surface in Brisbane.

2012 - Ever better

The last two years have seen us continually improving, and I am looking forward to 2012 with renewed enthusiasm. There is a really solid club spirit strengthening throughout Kedron Wavell, and we all know that, with just a little more support and a little more on the field we could be bringing home a literal "swag" of premierships in 2012.

As Ian Harcla noted last year, our supporters, volunteers and parents have got us through many challenges in the past and their continued efforts are the platform of future success. As such, I urge you to help the Club with whatever time and resources you can spare. If you are in a business that can look at a sponsorship, then we would love to talk to you as well!

The web site and Facebook pages worked well through the year, and improving their currency and usefulness to players and supporters is just one of the items on the 2012 agenda.

Club Management

The Club's Management Committee and Club Captains did another great job this year, and I want to particularly thank those people who stepped in to fill vacancies that arose during the year. Everyone rose to meet the challenges, and I am grateful for every bit of work that they put in, and to all of their tireless support volunteers in each of their roles.

Finally, it is always a daunting task to take over from someone who exhibits enormous dedication and carries an incredibly deep history, whether that is a business or a community organisation. Fortunately, Ian Harcla has remained closely involved at all levels in the club, including on Management Committee as Immediate Past President, and I thank him for his assistance through the year; and look forward to his continuing support.

My best wishes to everyone for the holiday season, and see you at the field in 2012!

John Davis

Club President

Treasurer's Report

KEDRON WAVELL SERVICES HOCKEY CLUB INCOME & EXPENDITURE STATEMENT (Unaudited)

for year ended 30 September 2011

Boys	Girls	Ladies	Men	Canteen	General	Total
1						
11 860	31 /1/	54 017	25 020			124 121
					4 300	10 794
1 400	3074	102	302		7 300	113
10 413	27 541	54 735	24 939		-4 300	327
5 000	5 000	5 000	5 000			36 364
ı						3 945
					15 652	25 334
		1 500	1 125			6 000
						546
2 300	2 300	1 650	1 650		20 284	28 184
				51 158		51 158
ı						165
						6 015
						2 458
i						10 094
					5 /10	5 710
20 524	40 263	65 144	35 823	51 158	76 387	289 299
_						
Boys	Girls	Ladies	Men	Canteen	General	Total
7.005	16 0E7	26.245	22 027			71 101
						71 424 46 330
0 302			13 623			368
3 123			8 704		2 252	24 745
						12 726
1 110		1 230	000			12 120
1 1 1 0 1		1 725			1011	
	2 175	1 725	1 005	42 008	1011	6 015
	2 1/5		1 005	42 008	1011	6 015 42 008
307		1 725 180		42 008		6 015 42 008 460
307	307		1 005	42 008	1 009	6 015 42 008 460 1 623
307			1 005		1 009 17 874	6 015 42 008 460 1 623 17 874
	307	180	1 005 280	42 008 990	1 009 17 874 3 572	6 015 42 008 460 1 623 17 874 4 562
307 687			1 005		1 009 17 874 3 572 873	6 015 42 008 460 1 623 17 874 4 562 3 203
687	307 1 064	180 95	1 005 280 483		1 009 17 874 3 572	6 015 42 008 460 1 623 17 874 4 562 3 203 2 294
687 771	307 1 064 1 748	180	1 005 280		1 009 17 874 3 572 873 2 294	6 015 42 008 460 1 623 17 874 4 562 3 203 2 294 3 510
687 771 816	307 1 064 1 748 1 631	180 95	1 005 280 483		1 009 17 874 3 572 873	6 015 42 008 460 1 623 17 874 4 562 3 203 2 294 3 510 7 919
687 771	307 1 064 1 748 1 631 1 500	180 95 425	1 005 280 483		1 009 17 874 3 572 873 2 294 5 472	6 015 42 008 460 1 623 17 874 4 562 3 203 2 294 3 510 7 919 2 450
687 771 816	307 1 064 1 748 1 631	180 95	1 005 280 483		1 009 17 874 3 572 873 2 294 5 472 605	6 015 42 008 460 1 623 17 874 4 562 3 203 2 294 3 510 7 919 2 450 5 533
687 771 816	307 1 064 1 748 1 631 1 500	180 95 425	1 005 280 483		1 009 17 874 3 572 873 2 294 5 472 605 1 077	6 015 42 008 460 1 623 17 874 4 562 3 203 2 294 3 510 7 919 2 450 5 533 1 077
687 771 816	307 1 064 1 748 1 631 1 500	180 95 425	1 005 280 483		1 009 17 874 3 572 873 2 294 5 472 605 1 077 2 235	6 015 42 008 460 1 623 17 874 4 562 3 203 2 294 3 510 7 919 2 450 5 533 1 077 2 235
687 771 816	307 1 064 1 748 1 631 1 500	180 95 425	1 005 280 483		1 009 17 874 3 572 873 2 294 5 472 605 1 077 2 235 460	6 015 42 008 460 1 623 17 874 4 562 3 203 2 294 3 510 7 919 2 450 5 533 1 077 2 235 460
687 771 816	307 1 064 1 748 1 631 1 500	180 95 425	1 005 280 483		1 009 17 874 3 572 873 2 294 5 472 605 1 077 2 235	6 015 42 008 460 1 623 17 874 4 562 3 203 2 294 3 510 7 919 2 450 5 533 1 077 2 235
	11 869 1 456 10 413 5 000 1 282 1 125 405 2 300 20 524 Boys 7 095 6 382 3 123 1 238	11 869 31 414 3 874 10 413 27 541 5 000 5 000 1 282 3 031 1 125 2 250 405 141 2 300 2 300 20 524 40 263 Boys Girls 7 095 16 057 6 382 200 3 123 4 371	11 869 31 414 54 917 1 456 3 874 182 10 413 27 541 54 735 5 000 5 000 5 000 1 282 3 031 2 259 1 125 2 250 1 500 405 141 2 300 2 300 1 650 20 524 40 263 65 144 Boys Girls Ladies 7 095 16 057 26 245 6 382 8 032 16 291 200 168 3 123 4 371 6 206	11 869 31 414 54 917 25 920 982 10 413 27 541 54 735 24 939 5 000 5 000 5 000 5 000 1 282 3 031 2 259 3 109 1 125 405 141 2 300 2 300 1 650 1 650 20 524 40 263 65 144 35 823 Boys Girls Ladies Men 7 095 16 057 26 245 22 027 6 382 8 032 16 291 15 625 200 168 3 123 4 371 6 206 8 794	11 869	11 869 31 414 54 917 25 920 4 300 10 413 27 541 54 735 24 939 -4 300 5 000 5 000 5 000 5 000 16 3 945 1 282 3 031 2 259 3 109 15 652 1 125 2 250 1 500 1 125 405 141 2 300 2 300 1 650 1 650 51 158 20 284 51 158 165 6 015 2 458 10 094 5 710 20 524 40 263 65 144 35 823 51 158 76 387 Boys Girls Ladies Men Canteen General 7 095 16 057 26 245 22 027 6 382 8 032 16 291 15 625 200 168 3 123 4 371 6 206 8 794

Repairs & maintenance Telephone 6-a-side hockey expenses						1 091 523 17 333	1 091 523 17 333
TOTAL EXPENSES	22 478	41 140	61 190	49 644	42 998	71 584	289 034
2011 SURPLUS	-1 954	-877	3 954	-13 822	8 161	4 803	265

KEDRON WAVELL SERVICES HOCKEY CLUB BALANCE SHEET (Unaudited)

as at 30 September 2011

ASSETS			
Cash Assets			
Cheque accounts		19 140	
Online saver accounts		15 376	
Canteen float		250	
Petty Cash	_	32	
Total Cash Held			34 798
Trade Debtors			28 694
Prepaid Expenses 2012			1 853
Non-current assets	40.047		
Club uniforms	13 847	7.000	
less accumulated depreciation	<u>-6 015</u>	7 832	
Canteen equipment	4 844	0.070	
less accumulated depreciation	-1 872	2 972	
Office equipment at cost Loan BHMG		309	04.000
Total Assets	=	9 979	21 092
Total Assets			86 437
LIABILITIES			
ANZ Visa		4 240	
Trade Creditors		7 404	
GST collected	6 634	7 404	
GST collected GST rounding	0 034		
GST paid	-8 386	-1 752	
Accrued Expenses 2011	0 300	10 800	
6-a-side deposits		4 500	
Total Liabilities	_	7 000	25 193
Total Liabilities			20 100
NET ASSETS			61 244
EQUITY			
Members' Funds	44.050		
Men	-11 653		
Ladies	4 054		
Boys	7 237		
Girls	11 651		
General Tatal manufactured a	14 073	05 004	
Total members' funds		25 361	
Retained Earnings		30 936	
Asset Replacement Reserve		4 700 247	
Current Earnings		247	61 244
TOTAL EQUITY			61 244

Club operations for this year have resulted in a net surplus of \$265. Overall this is a good result given some of the significant changes that have occurred in the club's financial structure during the year. A complete overhaul of the club's financial recordkeeping has enabled timely and detailed information to be available to club management through monthly section and whole of club reports as well as a detailed breakdown of the club's financial performance being available to all club members through the Annual Report. Management has approved the set-up of a new database for the commencement of the 2012 season to overcome the difficulties faced by section treasurers when tracking player payments.

Thanks to the efforts of Ben Smith we held a very successful Variety Auction early in the year that enabled us to make a \$5,500 donation to Warwick Hockey Association to assist them to recovery from the devastating losses they suffered in the January floods.

The men have faced a difficult year with restructuring of the Division 1 and Division 2 United teams which necessitated the club having to outlay in excess of \$10,000 to cover debts owed. We are still in the process of recovering part of this outlay from our partner club in the United venture.

Early in 2011 it was decided not to renew the purchasing agreement with Atlas Sports and Promotions. As part of the separation process the club purchased all existing uniform stock from ASAP and that was a significant cash outlay that was not expected.

The cash position of the club at the end of 2011 is not as strong as it was at the end of 2010 due to the issues discussed earlier and also the second half of our sponsorship payment not being received by the end of the financial year.

The canteen functioned very smoothly in 2011 thanks to the efforts of Karyn Argent and our tireless roster coordinators. A profit of \$9,000 was made and while this may seem a small amount for the efforts that are expended our efforts are rewarded in more ways than just monetary. Everybody looks forward to one of Karyn's steak burgers and our presence in the canteen is a very visible reminder to the hockey community that Burringbar is truly the home of Kedron-Wavell Hockey.

This year we trialled payment plans for the collection of player fees. We have learnt a lot from this process and will be looking at a variety of payment methods when making decisions for 2012.

In 2012 we will focus on preparing budgets to assist sections to track their financial performance.

Thank you to all of the section treasurers for their efforts during the year and to the management committee for the friendship and support in what has been a very challenging year.

Kathy Mehonoshen Club Treasurer

Men's Report

Season 2011 had many highs and lows within the Kedron Wavell Men's section. The focus for the year was creating a closer club environment from the Division 1 side down to the Division 5 side as well as the Vets side. Early in the year the introduction of the "Wolves" nickname for the club started to give the club a closer feel. Wolves shirts and stubby coolers soon popped up everywhere which showed it was well embraced by club members. Again the Division 5 side were the best performing men's side, winning its fourth grand final in five years. Coming from third spot on the ladder, they gallantly defeated the previously undefeated Valleys in strokes. Club Captain Tom King was the hero of the afternoon saving the final 2 strokes to give the guys a very well deserved win. Big thanks has to go to Noel Mitchell for looking after the side, as well as Andre Antony who helped guide the team through the final series.

The Vets 2 team made the preliminary final after a slow start to the season, however after a rearranged final they were unfortunately beaten by Redcliffe. The Division 4 side was a completely different side that had taken the field for Kedron the previously couple of years. Only three players from this team had played men's hockey in the previous year, with many returning to the sport after a long layoff. Mixed in with a few juniors the team fought all year in every game. Trent Franklin coached the Division 3 side this season and only showed glimpses of what could be achieved by them. Gaining experience from a full year in Division 3 is what many of these guys will get out of the season.

Division 2 had one of the more interesting years, losing from seemingly unlosable situations, while pulling out sensational wins over the top sides. Scott Macauley coached the side and not being able to have the same team on the field for consecutive weeks did not help in his search for consistency. This season a focus on "our own" was pushed with the Division 1 side, with upwards of twelve Kedron Wavell Juniors playing in the team at one stage or another. With extended absences from inspirational leader Kula Bhullar and goal sneak Adam McLelland the team could not gather momentum as often as necessary for a Division 1 side. However many other clubs did take notice of the up and coming Wolves and are preparing for us to come a lot harder at them next season. Big thanks to coach Miebaka Dede who did a terrific job with young guys this season.

Thanks have to go to everyone on the board who has worked tirelessly all year. A special mention to Christine Blanchard who after running the women for numerous years is stepping aside; congratulations on all you have done for Kedron Wavell Hockey. Karyn Argent and Andre Antony have both helped in different ways throughout the year and without them things would have gone a lot differently. A lot of work has been put into United/Kedron Wavell this season and Kathy Mehonoshen must be given praise for all of the work with BHA. Dan Moloney and Glen James both helped immensely as well which has taken quite the load off. Tom King and Fiona McQueen, the club captains this season, did a wonderful job working together and both can be proud of their achievements. Finally two people who have taken many hours out of their time for the club; Mark Evans and Renn Makin. Mark did up the weekly Wolves newsletter and each week had many in laughter thanks to the match reports. Renn gave his camera a huge work out this year taking as many photos as possible, and each week sent out many that looked very professional.

I very much enjoyed this season, and that is thanks to every club member at Kedron Wavell Hockey Club and I hope to see you all back for a huge 2012!!!

Ben Smith Men's Vice President

Ladies' Report

The ladies section fielded 10 teams in the BWHA competition in 2011: four turf teams, four grass teams and two Monday Masters teams.

Turf

There were teams in Divisions 1, 2, 3 and 4 and both Monday Masters 1 and 2.

Nikki Taylor continued to coach the Division 1 team and this year this team reached fourth position on the ladder. Representative commitments for players continued to affect the continuity of the Division 1 team and thanks are extended yet again to the Division 2 and 3 players who filled in time and again.

Two players from the 2010 Division 1 team were selected in the Hockeyroos squad this year. Jodie Schulz and Marnie Hudson are to be congratulated on their hard work that paid off with selection in the highest team possible. The Club wishes both ladies all the best in the coming year in the lead up to the Olympics.

Alyssa Kerr made the U21s Australian team (Jillaroos) and continues to bloom as a talented hockey player. Jasmine Larosa was selected as Captain of the Australian Schoolgirls team. The Club also congratulates both of these ladies on achieving selection in Australian teams and looks forward to seeing the heights that these ladies achieve in their hockey careers.

A number of players received BWHA awards this year with Alyssa Kerr receiving the Division 1 Best and Fairest Trophy and Tegan Kerr winning BWHA Rookie of the Year. Rebecca Kirchner received the BWHA Lyn Thomas Shield for the Most Promising Senior Umpire.

Effective coaches and committed players have yet again worked together for good results and this ensures a strong and faithful club.

Congratulations to all teams, players, coaches and managers.

Grass

We fielded four grass teams this year and this was an extra team up on last year – DP1, DP2, DP3 and DP4. The DP1 team did well and reached the major semi final.

The grass teams continued to be the fun teams of the competition with most DP teams ending up at the Downey Park bar at some stage on a Saturday. It's good to see ladies enjoying their hockey as this is what sport is all about.

Thanks go to coaches, managers and umpires as usual. Without your help we don't have a game.

Representative Players

A number of players from the ladies section played as representatives of Brisbane, Queensland and Australia and these are listed in another section of this report. Congratulations to all those who achieved selection in representative teams.

Club Captain

Fiona McQueen from DP1 did a fantastic job as Club Captain this year and will leave shoes that will be incredibly difficult to fill. Fiona also stepped into relieve as Club Secretary when needed mid year and her service to the Club this year has been outstanding. I thank Fiona for all her help this year – she has certainly made my life easier.

Canteen and Umpiring

The Club continued with the canteen management this year. The ladies section undertook their responsibilities as required and for that management is grateful. The funds raised in the canteen do help

keep fees down and all ladies carried out their rosters without question or complaint. Thanks so much for your co-operation in this.

A special thanks to all players who carried out their umpiring duties. It is acknowledged that many people do not enjoy umpiring but it is a duty that we all need to carry out. Many hands make light work so the more that people help out the less we all have to do!

This year we continued payment for all umpires - \$30 for badged and \$15 for non badged. These payments seemed to dull some of the pain associated with umpiring and as usual, I thank those who umpired for doing it without too much complaint.

Volunteers

A huge thanks to all those who volunteered this year to lighten the load within the Club. We certainly noticed the gap left by Helen and Bill Hill this year while Helen recovered from a serious illness. We wish Helen a full recovery and look forward to seeing her on the sidelines again soon. Thanks to all those who stepped in and filled in for technical bench and uniforms – jobs usually done by Helen.

Also thanks to my faithful band of helpers this year – Jane Newman, Kate Oudenryn and Fiona McQueen. Special mention also needs to be made of Jenny Tidey who provided advice and comments any time I asked.

To coaches and managers, also a huge thank you. My job is made much easier if I can communicate easily with all of you and I am grateful for your assistance when needed. After four years as Ladies Vice President I am stepping down and most likely leaving the job in the capable hands of Fiona McQueen. I thank all those who have supported me over the last four years – your assistance was invaluable.

Christine Blanchard
Ladies Vice President

Junior Boys Report

In 2011 KWSHC fielded 8 junior boys teams: 1 x J1, 1 x J3, 1 x U13 (Div 1), 1 x 13 Joint Venture team with Pine Hills Hockey Club (Div 2), 1 x U11 (Div 1), 2 x U9 and 1 x U7.

J1

This year the J1 team began the season with uncertainty due to the withdrawal of the SWU contingent that had previously played at this level for KWSHC. As a result, the J1 team was a younger team than in past years and, given that, a number of players had not previously played in the J Division. Thank you to the young men who each week played the J1 Division. It was greatly appreciated to have the more experienced players support and assist in the development of the boys who were new to the Division. Also, it was a credit to those players new to the Division to meet the challenge placed before them. Also, credit to the coaching team of Jacob Jennison and Joshua James and to the Senior Men's Division for the support provided by players who regularly provided advice and encouragement to the team.

J3

I am sure all the parents and players would agree that it was excellent experience to participate in the Grand Final for this Division. The players developed well throughout the Season and almost won the closely contested Final. A penalty corner blown against KWSHC with 10 seconds to play was unlucky. This did not deter the team who gallantly attempted to defend the winning stroke for the opposition. Every team cannot play a Grand Final every year. Therefore, to contest a Grand Final (Win or Lose) is a great effort by any team. Well done to players and coach. Congratulations to Sam Accutt for the wonderful job he did with coaching the team. Again, credit to the Senior Men's Division for the support provided by players who regularly provided advice and encouragement to the team.

U13 (Div1)

Ethan Trigell as coach and Derick Saxil as Manager deserve a special thanks for keeping the team together which unfortunately lost a couple of players mid season. The team worked hard to allow the boys to continue enjoying a game each week.

U13-Joint Venture with Pine Hills (Div2)

The U13 (2) team was a successful Joint Venture (JV) between KWSHC and Pine Hills Hockey Club (PHHC). During the pre-season, it became evident that PHHC had insufficient numbers to form an U13 team. Whilst KWSHC had sufficient numbers to complete an U13 team, discussions were held with PHHC to ensure their players were able to play Season 2011. As a consequence, the JV allowed for KWSHC U11 players the opportunity to play in a higher Division and develop their skills. The PH/KW team missed being the Minor Premiers for the Division by one (1) point and subsequently contested the Grand Final against the Minor Premiers. The result was a 0-0 draw and pursuant to BHA Rules the team higher on the Game Points ladder was awarded the Premiership.

U11

The U11 performed very well throughout the season and it was encouraging to watch the improvement of the boys. Thanks to coach Brian Williams and manager Duncan Davis who were able to pass on the enormous amount of hockey experience that they have.

U9 and U7

The Friday night competition was very popular this year. KWSHC fielded two under 9 teams with Jamie Wright and Tony Robertson each coaching a team. The under 7 team was coached by John Lee. A special thanks to these coaches who continue to encourage and support the players and make the sport fun. The teams attend and enjoyed two carnival days this year.

Development Programs

KreW fitness was introduced pre-season in 2011 and was conducted by Regie Fisher. The program allowed the players to improve their fitness prior to the season beginning. Also in 2011, Specialist Coaching Clinics were introduced to provide more intense training in specific skills. The Learn Hockey Program was also run at the beginning on the year and the club managed to recruit a number of new players thanks to the program. The QUT development clinic was offered to players during the September school holidays.

Canteen and Fundraising

The opportunity of being paid in 2011 for canteen roster and Friday night raffle ticket selling at Kedron-Wavell Services Club allowed for members to offset the cost of their fees.

Craig Fossey
Junior Boys Vice President

Junior Girls Report

This year Kedron Wavel I Girls fielded an impressive 13 teams in the BWHA competition. Two teams – JT1 and 13A - came away as premiers, with JT2, 13 Turf, JGrass, 13B and 11C all making finals. Well done to all the girls, coaches, managers and parents. It is a group effort that makes our section run so smoothly.

To give you a rundown of each team:

- Junior Turf and Grass: thank you to Graham Taylor, Steve Lynch, Andrew Blanchard, Sheridan Cash and Ken Dohnt who took the time to coach each of these teams. Congratulations to all of you for maintaining enthusiasm in the players whilst instilling some great skills.
- Under 13's: thank you to Bec Kirchner, Darren Smith and Dion Harrison for their coaching this season. These teams had a fantastic year and the girls have grown enormously in their skill base. We see Darren head off for greener pastures of Toowoomba shortly so a special thank you to him and Pam for their contribution to the club.
- Under 11's: thank you to Karen Davis, Ian Smith and Anna Mehonoshen for coaching our Under 11's this season. The kids enjoyed their season and were able to lay some further foundations of their "hockey knowledge" with these coaches. Special thanks must go to Ian Smith who looks after our club website and congratulations to Karen Davis who was made a life member of the club this year.
- Under 9's & 7's: these players are our upcoming champions and it was definitely apparent that we are blessed with enthusiastic kids and parents this year. Thanks to Renee Taylor, Dave Hermann and Fiona McQueen for their unbridled patience with our littler ones.
- The start of the year saw fitness take off with a new concept "KreW Fitness", which was coordinated by Regie Fisher and Nick Lawlor. The kids loved it and we had great turnouts on Monday afternoon on the grass fields. This was a perfect kick start into the season and we are hoping to continue the concept in 2012.

As a result of the generous support of Kedron Wavell Services Club we have been able to again run an umpire development program in 2011. This program was run by Alyson Aleksic with the support of Allison Dewar. The program has been very successful with sixteen girls being mentored in a total of forty one games. We also had five receive their practical accreditation for the community level from BWHA.

Allison Dewar coordinated the umpiring roster this year and she was invaluable in ensuring our commitment to BWHA was fulfilled. Thank you goes to Allison, the girls and their parents for willingly completing their umpiring duties.

Big thank you to Christine Carr for her wonderful administrative assistance, Wendy Keegan for Treasurer, Kaaren Lane for her sausage sizzle expertise, Narelle Gerkhe for the cake stall, Carol Crisp for the canteen rosters, Kellie McGrory for uniforms, Julie McCarthy for photos and Regie Fisher for her continued enthusiasm and passion.

To the parents, thank you for your commitment to our club. To the girls, keep enjoying your hockey. It's a great way to meet new friends, get fit and have some fun!

Belinda Urquhart

Junior Girls Vice President

Trophy Winners

SENIOR PERPETUAL TROPHIES

Patrons Trophy - Best Club Person - Kellie McGrory

Presidents Trophy – Service to the Club by a Player

Senior Male – Scott Macauley Senior Female – Lisa-Maree Jones

The Jones Family Trophy - Most Valuable Division 1 Ladies Player - Rebecca Kirchner

Umbro Trophy Senior Men – Most Promising Senior Male Player – Sam Acutt

Brisbane Trophy Centre Trophy - Most Promising Senior Female Player - Jamie Stone

McDonald Family Trophy -

Most Effective Forward – Men – **Bryan Butler** Most Effective Back – Men – **James Treeby**

Juanita Hall Trophy - Most Effective Forward - Ladies Turf - Samantha Pavish

Eric and Mavis Jones Trophy -

Most Effective Forward – Ladies Grass – **Tracy Shaab**Most Effective Back – Ladies Grass – **Catherine Kerklaan**

United Hockey Best & Fairest - Aaron Lund

United Hockey Coaches Award - Kula Bhullar

MENS TEAM TROPHIES 2011

MOST CONSISTENT PLAYER

Division 1	Matthew Argent
Division 2	Gareth Hughes
Division 3	James Treeby
Division 4	Brenton Polzin
Division 5	Renn Makan
Veterans Division 2	Michael Allen

LADIES TEAM TROPHIES 2011

MOST CONSISTENT PLAYER

Division 1	Alyssa Kerr
Division 2	Georgina Wilkinson
Division 3	Deborah Awyzio
Division 4	Laura Cleator
Monday Masters Division 1	Racquel Kolkert
Monday Masters Division 2	Alisa Lapila
DP1	Allyson Flanagan
DP2	Alison Dewar
DP3	Eve Olsen
DP4	Tracy Shaab

JUNIOR PERPETUAL TROPHIES

Presidents Trophy – Service to the Club by a Player
Junior Male – Elliot Fossey
Junior Female – Jaimie Fisher

Laurie Pitt Trophy - Most Promising Rookey or U9 Boy - Declan Baker

Bill Brown Trophy – Most Promising Rookey or U9 Girl – Olivia McManus

Keith Tidey Trophy – Junior Boy Umpiring Achievement – Not Presented

Tidey Family Trophy – Junior Girl Umpiring Achievement – Simone Carr

Peter Deering Trophy - Best Junior Boy Goalkeeper - Aaron Ward & Caleb Parker

Mel Taylor Trophy – Best Junior Girl Goalkeeper – Amelia Maizey

Holmberg Trophy – Junior Team with the Best Overall Performance During the Season – U13A Girls

City United Trophy - Most Valuable Junior Boy Player in a Final - Liam McDermott

City United Trophy - Most Valuable Junior Girl Player in a Final - Sophie Conway

Senior Men's Trophy – Most Promising Junior Boy – Joshua Crisp

Senior Ladies Trophy – Most Promising Junior Girl – Courtney Kerr

BOYS TEAM TROPHIES 2011

Under 11 (1)	Title
Lewis Fossey	Most Consistent
Zachary Shepherd	Most Improved
Under 13 (1)	Title
Hamish McKerihan	Most Consistent
Lachlan McDonald	Coaches Award
J3	Title
Mitchell Naylor	Coaches Award
Daniel Springfield	Players Player
J1	Title
Hayden Accutt	Coaches Award
Zac Parker	Most Valuable

GIRLS TEAM TROPHIES 2011

	Most Improved	Player's Player
JT1	Jess Dimmick	Kate Springfield
	Most Improved	Most Consistent
JT2	Sarah Crisp	Lisa Michalak
	Most Improved	Most Consistent
JT3	Kiesha Coveney	Anna Jones
	Player's Player	Most Consistent
J Grass	Brianne Scott	Eleanore Mason
	Most Improved	Most Consistent
U13T	Kiri Fabila	Mackenzie Smith
	Most Improved	Most Valuable Player
U13A	Madeline James	Julia Sarri
	Most Determined	Most Valuable Team Player
U13B	Lauren Fairhall	Sophie Morley
	Most Consistent Attacker	Most Consistent Defender
U11A	Elizabeth Haigh	Claudia Dohnt
	Most Improved	Most Consistent
U11B	Teare Wood	Kiara Blaney
	Most Improved	Most Valuable Player
U11C	Tarren Carter	Grace Gehrke

Representative Players

BOYS

Player	Representative Team	
Phillip Coote	Brisbane U15 3	
Elliot Fossey	Brisbane U15 3	
Caleb Parker	Brisbane U15 3	
Daniel Springfield	Brisbane U15 3	
Justin Stevenson	Brisbane U15 3	
Saul Bos	Brisbane U13 No 3	
Paul Scroope	Brisbane U13 No 3	
Lewis Fossey	Brisbane U11 Coulter Shield team 1	
Zac Sheehan	Brisbane U11 Coulter Shield team 1	
Brendan Davis	Brisbane U11 Coulter Shield team 1	

GIRLS

Player	Representative Team		
Amelia Mazey	Brisbane U13 4		
Annabelle Cochrane	Sunshine Coast U13		
Brittany Wilkinson	Qld U15		
	Brisbane U15 1		
	Met North Secondary Schoolgirls U19		
Calista Chandra	Brisbane U18 3		
Charlie Littler Brisbane U15 3			
Claudia Dohnt	Brisbane U11 2		
Courtney Kerr	Qld U16 Secondary Schoolgirls		
	Qld U15		
	Brisbane U15 1		
	Met North Secondary Schoolgirls U19		
Elizabeth Haigh	Brisbane U11 1		
Elizabeth McGrory	Brisbane U13 2		
Jacqui McGrory	Brisbane U13 Umpire		
	Brisbane U18 3		
Jamie Fisher	Brisbane U15 1		
Jemma Punch	Brisbane U11 4		
Jessica Kane	Brisbane U11 2		
Josephine Williams	Brisbane U15 3		
Julia Sarri	Brisbane U13 4		
Kate Springfield	Brisbane U15 2		
Keely McCarthy	Brisbane U15 2		
Kristina Cartwright	Brisbane U18 2		
Liza Michalak	Brisbane U18 3		
Lucy Tynan	Brisbane U15 3		
	Met North Secondary Schoolgirls U19		
Mackenzie Smith	Brisbane U13 2		
Maddi Stokes-Phillips	Met North Secondary Schoolgirls U19 Umpire		
Miranda Menchini	Brisbane U13 2		
Miranda Scroope	Brisbane U13 2		
Morgan Gallagher	Qld U15		
	Brisbane U15 1		
Prue Haigh	Brisbane U11 3		
Rachel Fraser	Brisbane U15 3		
	Met North Primary Schoolgirls Umpire		

Renee Taylor	Qld U16 Secondary Schoolgirls Shadow	
	Brisbane U15 1	
	Met North Secondary Schoolgirls U19	
Riley Chisholm	Brisbane U15 1	
Sam Marriott	Brisbane U15 2	
Sarah Crisp	Brisbane U15 3	
Simone Carr	Brisbane U13 3	
	Met North Primary Schoolgirls	
Sophie Conway	Met North Primary Schoolgirls	

<u>MEN</u>

Player/Official	Team	Representative Honours/Award or Position Held
Matthew Argent	Division 1	Qld U18
Matthew Argent	DIVISION	Qld U19 Schoolboys
Josh Crisp	Division 4	Qld U19 Schoolboys
Adam Mclelland	DIVISION 4	Brisbane 1 Premier League
Adam Mclelland		Qld Blades
Sam Acutt	Division 1	Brisbane 2 Premier League
Josh James	Division 1	Brisbane 2 Premier League
Aaron Lund	Division 1	Brisbane 2 Premier League
Gareth Hughes	Division 2	Brisbane 2 Premier League
Justin Morris	Division 1	Brisbane State Open
Hayden Acutt	Division 3	Brisbane State Open
Brett Jennings	Vets 1	Qld Over 40/1
Ian Catherall	Vets 1 and Division 5	Qld Over 40/2
Bryan Butler	Vets 1 and Division 5	Qld Over 40/2
Ashley Jennings	Vets 1 and Division 5	Qld Over 40/2
Martin Halsey	Vets 2 and Division 5	Qld Over 45/2
David Todd	Vets 2 and Division 5	Qld Over 50/1
Duncan Davis	Vets 2	Qld Over 50/1
John Davis	Vets 2 and Division 5	Qld Over 50/2
Ian Harcla	Vets 2 and Division 5	Qld Over 50/2
Ajit Bhullar	Vets 2	Qld Over 55/2
Noel Mitchell	Division 5	Qld Over 55/2
Andre Antony		Qld Over 45/1 Coach
		Qld Over 65 Coach

LADIES

Player/Official	Team	Representative Honours/Award or
		Position Held
Aimee Holcroft	Division 2	Brisbane Open
		Qld U19 Schoolgirls
		Met North
Alyson Aleksic	Division 3	Manager Metropolitan North Primary Girls
		Hockey
		Manager Qld Primary Girls Hockey
		Treasurer Qld Primary Girls Hockey

	Tarri .	T
Alyssa Kerr	Division 1	Brisbane Premier League 1
		2011 Qld Scorchers Team
		Qld Scorchers (Japan Uni Games)
		Qld U21
		Qld U21 Player of the Tournament
		BWHA Division 1 Best and Fairest
		Australia Jillaroos (U21s)
		Qld Nationally Identified Player (Oceania
		Cup)
Andrew Blanchard	Coach DP1	KWSHC Junior Selector
		KWSHC Senior Grass Selector
Anna Mehonoshen	Division 4	U18 Brisbane 3
Britt Wilkinson	Division 2	
DIIII WIIKIIISOII	DIVISION 2	Qld U16 Schoolgirls
		Qld U15
		Met North
		Brisbane U15
Caeleigh Hancock	DP3 and MM2	Brisbane Vets 3
		Brisbane Vets Southern Cross 1
		KWSHC Senior Grass Selector
Cathy Diahmant	MM2	Brisbane Vets 4
Cathy Dichmont		
Christine Blanchard	DP4	BWHA Management
Courtney Kerr	Division 2	Qld U15
		Player of the Final U15(Qld)
		Qld U16 Schoolgirls (withdrew injured)
		Brisbane U15
		Met North
Diana Young	MM2 and Manager	BWHA Fixtures and Grading Committee
Diana roung	9	
	Division 4	(Grass and Turf)
		Brisbane, Qld and Australian Veterans
		Selector
Dion Harrison	Coach DP2	KWSHC Senior Grass Selector
Elaine Badini	DP4	Brisbane Vets 2 Southern Cross
Gabrielle Hunt	Division 2	Brisbane Open
	2.11.6.6.1. 2	U18 Southern Cross Brisbane 1
		Qld U19 Schoolgirls
		U18 Brisbane 1
		Met North
Jamie Stone	Division 1	Qld U21
		2011 Qld Scorchers Squad
		Qld U18
		2011 National Futures Squad
		Premier League (Gold Coast)
		Qld U19 Schoolgirls
Jone Novemen	DD1 and MM2	
Jane Newman	DP1 and MM2	BWHA Judiciary
Jasmine Larosa	Division 2	Qld U21
		2011 Qld Scorchers Squad
		Brisbane Premier League 1
		Southern Cross Swifts
		Qld U18
		2011 National Futures Squad
		Australian Schoolgirls team (Captain)
<u> </u>	<u> </u>	U18 Brisbane 1
Jay Browning	Division 2	Brisbane Open
		U18 Southern Cross Brisbane 1
		Qld U19 Schoolgirls
		U18 Brisbane 1 (withdrew)
		Met South
	<u>I</u>	

Jenny Tidey	Patron	BWHA House Committee
Comity Tidey	1 dilon	BWHA Grounds Committee
		BWHA Assistant Uniforms Officer
Jodie Schulz	Division 1	Hockeyroos
Codio Corraiz	BIVIOIOII I	2011 Qld Scorchers team
		Qld Scorchers (Japan Uni Games)
		Qld Nationally Identified Player (Oceania
		Cup)
Kate Oudenryn	DP1, DP4 and MM2	Brisbane Vets 3
rato Gadomyn	51 1, 51 1 and 1/11/12	Brisbane Vets 2 Southern Cross
Kim Abbott	DP3 and MM2	Brisbane Vets 2 Southern Cross
Kristina Cartwright	Division 3	U18 Southern Cross Brisbane 2
Talouna Cartwiight	211101011 0	U18 Brisbane 2
Lisa Maree Jones	Coach Division 2 and	Coach Brisbane Premier League 2
Lied Wares sories	Player MM2	Co Coach U18 Southern Cross Brisbane 2
	1 layor wiiviz	Coach U18 Brisbane 2
		BWHA Vice President
		BWHA Turf Fixtures
		KWSHC Junior Turf Selector
		KWSHC Senior Turf Selector
		Brisbane U18 Selector
		Premier League Selector
Maddison Lawrence	Division 2	2011 Qld Scorchers Squad
	211161611 =	U18 Southern Cross
		Qld U19 Schoolgirls
		U18 Brisbane 2 (withdrew due to illness)
		Met South
Margie Quill	Division 3	Brisbane "B" Umpire Badge
Megan Lawrence	Division 1	Brisbane Premier League 2
mogan zameneo	211101011 1	HQ 2011 Women's Development Team
		(China)
		2011 Qld Scorchers team (Sunshine Coast)
Michelle Weekes	DP3	Brisbane Vets 2 Southern Cross
Morgan Gallagher	JT1 and Division 3	Qld U15
organ Canagno.	011 4.114 2.1116.611 6	Brisbane U15
		Met West Schoolgirls
Nikki Taylor	Division 1 Coach and	Assistant Coach Qld U21
· ····································	MM2	Coach Brisbane Premier League 1
		Selector Brisbane Premier League and
		Open
		KWSHC Senior Turf Selector
Rebecca Kirchner	Division 1	Brisbane Premier League 1
		HQ 2011 Women's Development Team
		Swifts
		BWHA Lyn Thomas Shield - Most
		Promising Senior Umpire
		2011 Qld Scorchers Squad
Regie Fisher	Coach Division 3	Manager Qld U21
•	Manager Division 1	
Renee Taylor	Division 2	Qld U16 Shadow
•		Brisbane U15
		Met North
Rhonda Bentley	DP1 Manager	
Rhonda Bentley	DP1 Manager	Manager Brisbane Vets 1
Rhonda Bentley	DP1 Manager	
Rhonda Bentley	DP1 Manager	Manager Brisbane Vets 1 Manager Women's Masters International
Rhonda Bentley	DP1 Manager	Manager Brisbane Vets 1 Manager Women's Masters International Invitational

Samantha Pavish	Division 1	Brisbane Premier League 1 Qld U21 Southern Cross Scorpions 2011 Qld Scorchers Squad
Tammy Eiser	Division 1	Qld U21 2011 Qld Scorchers Squad Premier League (Toowoomba)
Tegan Kerr	Division 2	Brisbane Premier League 2 Southern Cross Scorpions U18 Southern Cross Brisbane 1 Qld U19 Schoolgirls Qld U18 BWHA Rookie of the Year U18 Brisbane 1 Met North Schoolgirls
Thomasina Ah Ben	DP3	Brisbane Vets 2 Brisbane Vets Southern Cross 1
Wendy La Chiusa	Division 4 and MM1	Brisbane Vets 2 Qld 50+ Vets

Team Results

LADIES

Team	Coach	Manager	Position
Division 1	Nikki Taylor	Regie Fisher	4 th
Division 2	Lisa-Maree Jones	Sonya Taylor Deb Wilkinson	5 th
Division 3	Nick Lawler/Regie Fisher	Liz Cartwright	3 _{tq}
Division 4	Ian Harcla	Diana Young	7 th
Monday Masters 1	-	Toni Ovenell	5 th
Monday Masters 2	-	Kate Oudenryn	2 nd
DP1	Andrew Blanchard	Rhonda Bentley	3 rd
DP2	Dion Harrison	Dion Harrison	8 th
DP3	Caeleigh Hancock	Caeleigh Hancock	5 th
DP4	Elaine Badini	Elaine Badini	5 th

GIRLS

Team	Coach	Manager	Position
JT1	Graham Taylor	Julie Marriott	1 st and Premiers
JT2	Steve Lynch	Nella Spencer	3 rd
JT3	Sheridan Cash/ Andrew Blanchard	Alistair Easton	7 th and Presidents Pennant
JG2	Ken Dohnt	Wendy Mason	4 th
U13T	Rebecca Kirchner	Sandy Green	1 st
U13A	Darren Smith	Rod Mathers	1 st and Premiers
U13B	Dion Harrison	Lenelle Daniels	3 rd
U11A	Karen Davis	Vivien Pigram	5 th
U11B	Ian Smith	Mel Giacomantonio	8 th
U11C	Anna Mehonoshen	Narelle Gehrke	9 th
U9 Blue	Dave Hermann and	Hanli Testa	-
	Morgan Gallagher		
U9 Red	Renee Taylor	Kylie Phillips	-
U7	Fiona McQueen and Jaimie Fisher	Kylie Spindler	-

BOYS

Team	Coach	Manager	Position
J1	Jacob Jennison	Amanda Naylor	6th
	Joshua James	Craig Fossey	
J3	Sam Acutt	Craig Fossey	Grand finalists
U13 div 1	Ethan Triggell	Derick Saxil	6th
U13 div 2	Sam Brooks		Grand finalists
Joint Venture			
U11 div 1	Brain Williams	Duncan Davis	5th
U9 Blue	Jamie Wright	Fred Malcolm	-
U9 Red	Tony Robertson	Kerri-Ann Punch	-
U7	John Lee	Mark D'Hage	-

<u>MEN</u>

Team	Coach	Manager	Position	
BHL 1	Miebaka Dede		9 th	
BHL 2	Scott Macauley		7 th	
BHL 3	Trent Franklin		7 th	
BHL 4			9 th	
BHL 5	Noel Mitchell	Andre Antony	Premiers	
Vets 2			3 rd	